
l">-s'--a1fdo
REGULAR MEETING OF THE

SALADO BOARD OF ALDERMEN

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

6:30 P.M., THURSDAY, JUNE 16,2016
MUNICIPAL BUILDING

301 NORTH STAGECOACH, SALADO, TX
BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation/Moment of Silence

2. Pledge of Allegiance, Texas Pledge of Allegiance

("Honor the Texas flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.")

II. PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL RECOGNITION

None.

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

3. Citizens who desire to address the Board of Aldermen on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this
meeting. Public comments on issues not listed on the agenda will be received during this portion of the
meeting. Comments related to items on the agenda will be received during consideration of the
individual agenda item. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken
by the Board of Aldermen.

IV. REPORTS

Mayor's Report

Alderman Reports:
• Environmental Report - Alderman Dankert
• ETJ/Annexation Report - Alderman McDougal and Alderman Dankert
• Ordinance Committee Report - Alderman Williams and Alderman Coachman
• Main Street Report - Mayor Pro Tempore Brown and Alderman Coachman
• Street Improvement Report - Alderman McDougal

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, June 16,2016· Page I of3



• Economic Development Committee - Alderman Coachman and Mayor Pro Tempore Brown
• Trails and Parks Committee - Alderman Dankert
• Public Safety / Emergency Management Committee - Alderman Dankert and Alderman

McDougal
• Stagecoach /Wastewater Status Report - Mayor Pro Tempore Brown, Alderman Williams, and

Administrator Foutz

Financial Report

V. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Board of Aldermen, any item may be
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of an Alderman and will be considered separately.

4. Consider approving the Consent Agenda items:

a. Minutes, June 2, 2016, Regular Meeting
b. Minutes, June 4, 2016, Strategic Planning Retreat
c. Minutes, June 9, 2016, Workshop Meeting

VI. REGULAR AGENDA

5. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution (R-2016-142) establishing a Purchasing
Policy.

6. Consider and take action on waivers to Section 3.5, Sidewalks, and Section 5.5D, Ramps, of the Village
of Salado Subdivision Ordinance 2009.03 for a construction plat of Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII, a
subdivision in the ETJ.

7. Consider and take action on waivers to Section 3.lC5, Offsite Improvements, and Section 5.9, Perimeter
Street Improvements, of the Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinance 2009.03 for a construction plat of
Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII, a subdivision in the ETJ.

8. PUBLIC HEARING - Presentation, public hearing, and possible action on an Ordinance of the
Board of Alderman of the Village of Salado, Texas, establishing an Ordinance relating to "the
Intentional Feeding and Disposal of Deer;" creating an Offense; providing a Penalty Clause;
establishing a fine of no less than $75 or more than $125 per Feeding Offense; establishing a Fee
of$50 per Carcass for Removal from private property; repealing conflicting ordinances; providing
a Severability Clause; and establishing an Effective Date.

VII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

9. Evaluation of the Chief of Police as authorized by Texas Government Code §551.074, Personnel
Matters.

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, June 16,2016 • Page 2 of 3



VIII. ADJOURN

The Village of Salado reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 55l.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 55l.087
(Economic Development).

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services
must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Village Secretary's office at (254) 947-5060 for further assistance.

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 5:00 p.m.
on Monday, June 13,2016.

Removed from display: _

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, June 16,2016· Page 3 of3

L- _



Village of Salado, Texas
Board of Aldermen

Minutes
Regular Meeting and Workshop
6:30 p.m. Thursday, June 2, 2016

Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road
Salado, Texas

Present: Mayor Skip Blancett Mayor Pro Tempore Fred Brown, Alderman Frank Coachman,
Alderman Amber Preston Dankert, Alderman Michael McDougal, Alderman David Williams.

Others Present: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator; Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary.

I. Call to Order.

Mayor Blancett called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

1. Larry Sands opened the meeting with prayer.

2. Eagle Scout candidate Nathan Cahoon led the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge
of Allegiance.

II. Proclamations.

3. Mayor Blancett presentation a proclamation to Mr. Cahoon in recognition of his Eagle
Scout Project, which was a rain-fed drip irrigation system for the demonstration garden at
the Visitor's Center.

III. Public Comments.

4. None.

IV. Reports.

Mayor's Report.
Mayor Blancett offered congratulations to Mr. Cahoon and expressed sympathy for the
families of Fort Hood soldiers who lost their lives in a flooding accident on post. He said
the Village will continue to work on the issue of flooding and drainage in the area of
Stagecoach Circle. He said representatives from JES Development Company, parent
company of Hidden Glen Senior Housing, will be in Salado next week and will consider
possible solutions to the drainage issues in that area. One such possible solution is the use
of oversized box culverts. He reported that the Board of Aldermen will conduct a
strategy workshop at 8 a.m. Saturday, June 4, 2016, which is open to the public. He also
said he will deliver a "State of Salado" report at 6:30 p.m. Tuesday, June 14,2016, at the
Civic Center. He invited all to read the Mayor's blog, posted on the Village website.

Minutes, Regular Meeting, June 2,2016· Page I of 5



Police Department Report.
Chief Jack Hensley reported that the Public Safety/Emergency Management Committee
has completed its review of Chapter 1 of the General Orders and has moved on to Chapter
2, Professional Standards. He addressed various activities of the department and discussed
department statistics for the month of May. See attached report.

Fire Department Report.
Chief Shane Berrier reported that the fire truck to replace the one that burned has been
received and is in use. The other fire truck purchased with grant funds is scheduled to be
delivered next week. He discussed department statistics for the month ofMay. See attached
report.

Chamber of Commerce/Tourism Bureau Report.
Executive Director Mary Poche reported that 30 vendors have signed on for Dog Daze,
which will take place June 18 at the SaladoWinery. Coleman Hampton and Liz Patronella
are the new staff members at the Central Texas Area Museum and are already working on
the Annual Gathering of the Clans and Highland Games, scheduled for November. She
reported on activities of the Chamber and Tourism Bureau. See attached report.

Village Administrator's Report.
Administrator Foutz discussed the street maintenance program. Volunteers are needed to
drive the truck for the crack seal program in the summer while the primary volunteer is on
vacation. She said all committees have conducted kickoff meetings and are meeting
regularly. The sewer pre-treatment ordinance will be reviewed by the Wastewater
Committee, then sent to the Ordinance Committee. All TCEQ permit renewal
requirements have been completed; there is a six-month period for review, and renewals
should be finalized in December. She reported that she and Village Engineers Rick
Kasberg and Jake Blair met with the Texas Historical Commission about the sewer lines
through the Historical District. The Commission has requested additional work and testing
and requires three digs to make sure there are no antiquities in the sewer line path that
would need to be preserved. The Ordinance Committee has a list of potential priorities ad
will meet Monday to work out the review schedule. A trolley tour for committee members
of the TAP Trail alignment was rained out and will be rescheduled. The blower for the
StagecoachWastewater Treatment Plant has been installed and is working, but the clarifier
is still on order. She said the EDA easement acquisition appears favorable.

V. Consent Agenda.

5. Consider approving the Consent Agenda items:

a. Minutes, May 19,2016, Regular Meeting
b. Minutes, May 26,2016, Workshop Meeting

Alderman McDougal made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Alderman Coachman seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Minutes. Regular Meeting, June 2, 2016 • Page 2 of 5



VI. Regular Agenda.

6. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on an amendment to the Chapter 380
agreement with JES Development Company, Inc., (Hidden Glen).

Administrator Foutz explained the changes to the agreement, most of which are minor in
nature. There was discussion on the age and income level of tenants in Hidden Glen.

Alderman Williams made a motion to approve an amendment to the Chapter 380
agreement with JES Development Company. Inc., as presented. Alderman McDougal
seconded.

Discussion:

Alderman Coachman asked to amend the motion to not accept the change from
"dwellings" to "duplexes" in Section 2.2g of the agreement. Mayor Pro Tempore Brown
seconded the amendment to the motion. The amendment to the motion carried
unanimously.

The amended motion was thenput to a vote and carried unanimously.

7. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on easement dedications for the
Transportation Alternative Program Multi-Modal Trail between the Village of Salado and
1)KD andGraydonHill dba BarrowBrewing Company, and 2) Clark Lyda dba Stagecoach
1943 LP.

Alderman Dankert explained that the trail alignment has undergone many changes. The
Village attorney is looking at agreements for easements drawn up for the Mr. andMrs. Hill
andMr. Lyda. There are some parking issues at Barrow Brewing Co. The alignment must
be finalized within a week or the Village risks losing the grant.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to approve easement dedications for the
Transportation Alternative Program Multi-Modal trail between the Village of Salado and
1) KD and Graydon Hill, dba Barrow Brewing Company, and 2) Clark Lyda, dba
Stagecoach 1943LP, as presented. Alderman McDougal seconded.

Discussion:

Alderman Dankert asked amend the motion to authorize staff to negotiate minor terms as
recommended by attorneys or owners. Mayor Pro Tempore Brown seconded the
amendment to the motion. The amendment carried unanimously.

The amended motion was thenput to a vote and carried unanimously.

8. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on the award of a bid through BuyBoard for
the purchase of a either a 2016 Ford Explorer SUV in the amount of $31,394.55 or a 2016

Minutes, Regular Meeting, June 2, 2016 • Page 3 of 5



Ford Interceptor sedan in the amount of$29,339.57 for the Salado Police Department and
authorizing staff to bring forth a budget amendment in the amount of $10,554.55 for the
Explorer or $8,489.57 for the Interceptor, to include $650 for installation of graphics for
the vehicle and $300 for the computer mount.

Administrator Foutz said that because this item was bid through BuyBoard, a purchasing
cooperative used by municipalities, the vehicles have already been bid by the
cooperative. The BOA will not see the other bids. There was discussion about the age
and mileage of current Police vehicles. Four options were presented (see attached).
There was discussion about the various options for the budget amendment.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to approve the award of a bid through BuyBoard
and utilizing Option 1for the purchase of a 2016 Ford Explorer SUV in the amount of
$31,394.55 for the Salado Police Department and authorizing staff to bring forth a
budget amendment in the amount of $10,554.55 to include $650 for installation of
graphics for the vehicle and $300 for the computer mount. The motion carried
unanimously.

The Mayor closed the Regular Session at 8:04 p.m. and called for the Workshop Session
to start at 8:15p.m.

VII. Workshop Session.

The Mayor opened the Workshop Session at 8:13 p.m.

9. Lewis Raney, M.D., chairman of the Environmental/Deer Committee, brought a report of
his committee's activities. He gave four possible steps the Village can take in the effort to
control the overpopulation of deer:

1)An ordinance to prohibit the feeding of deer. He said this is recommended by most cities
that have addressed a deer overpopulation and also is recommended by the Texas
Department of Parks and Wildlife.

2) A sterilization program for at least one section of the Village. The doe is shot with a dart
that injects a vaccine (PZP) that is 90 percent effective for 12 months at a cost of $10 to
$15 per doe. There are issues with this method of control: it requires a special dart gun, the
availability of the vaccine, a properly qualified shooter, maintaining of identification of
deer that have been vaccinated, and recovery of the darts that do nog hit the target. The
State of Pennsylvania does not allow PZP. One member of the committee property has
volunteered to pay for this option for deer that reside on her property.

3) Sharpshooting for certain sections of the Village at $250 per deer. Alderman Dankert
added that the company that provides the sharpshooters carries the liability. The bullets
break in impact, so there is little chance for a pass-through bullet striking a citizen or pet.
The carcass is then donated to area food banks for the needy.

Minutes, Regular Meeting, June 2,2016' Page 40f5



4) Trapping-Netting-Euthanizing in other parts of the Village. This is done at a cost of at
least $250 per deer. The carcass is then donated to area food banks for the needy.

There also was discussion about disposal of deer carcasses. The Village's policy is that a
deer in public right-of-way is the responsibility of the Village, but a deer on private
property is the responsibility of the property owner. Often, property owners will drag the
carcass to the street for the Village to pick up. One trip to the Temple landfill to dispose of
a dead deer costs the Village about $68. One suggestion is to purchase a walk-in cooler to
store carcasses, then make one trip to the landfill a week. Another suggestion is to contact
the waste management companies that serve the Village (Eagle Disposal and Al Clawson)
about developing a program to handle deer carcasses.

It was decided to send this item back to committee to develop a recommendation, then
bring it back to workshop.

The Mayor closed the Workshop Session at 8:50 p.m.

VIII. Executive Session.

The Mayor called for Executive Session at 8:52 p.m. and directed the Chief of Police to
clear the building.

10. Conduct an executive session as authorized by Texas Government Code Section 551.087,
Economic Development, for the discussion of Chapter 380 and Tourism Marketing
Agreements with Stagecoach 1943 Limited Partners for improvements at Stagecoach Inn.

11. Conduct an executive session as authorized by Texas Government Code Section 551.072,
Deliberations about Real Property, for the purchase of a site on the west side for a
Wastewater Treatment Plant.

12. Conduct an executive session as authorized by Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
Consultation with Attorney, concerning an investigation into possible misconduct by an
employee and available legal remedies.

IX. Adjourn.

The Mayor closed the Executive Session at 9:21 p.m. and adjourned the meeting at that
time.

Skip Blancett, Mayor

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Minutes, Regular Meeting, June 2, 2016 • Page 5 of 5



Village of Salado, Texas
Strategic Planning Workshop Meeting of the Board of Aldermen

Minutes
8:00 a.m. Saturday, June 4,2016

Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road
Salado, Texas

Board of Aldermen Chambers

Present: Mayor Skip Blancett, Mayor Pro Tempore Fred Brown, Alderman Frank Coachman,
Alderman Amber Dankert, Alderman Michael McDougal, Alderman David Williams.

Others Present: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator; Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary.

I. Call to Order.

1. Mayor Blancett called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. He opened the meeting with
prayer.

There was general discussion about the positive and negative aspects about the Village and
its government, how to work as a group, and how to best handle criticism. The Board
discussed the need to streamline processes and create more transparency.

2. Community challenges: prioritizes and brainstorm solutions

3. 2015-2016 Program of Work (adopted with budget) and 2016-20187 Program of Work.

4. Preliminary FY 2016-2017 budget discussion and priorities

The Board combined items 2, 3 and 4 into one discussion about priorities.

The Board set priorities for the next eight months to two years:
a. Working for a more positive relationship with builders and developers
b. Simplification of ordinances: remove burdensome processes, create checklists and

process sheets. Create flow: Ordinance Committee to BOA workshop to P&Z/BOA
for action. New ordinances would not go to the Ordinance Committee.

c. Review and retool the inspection and planning review processes; compare
alternatives (assigned to Annexation Committee).

d. Updating the Master Plans.
e. Annexation: focus on desirable properties (commercial, high-value residential)

1. Enticements, incentives
2. ETJ negotiations
3. Mayor ETJ letters
4. Road annexations: FM 2268, FM 2484, FM 2483
5. Utility annexations
6. Focus on properties near sewer

Minutes, Planning Workshop, June 4, 2016 • Page I of 2



7. Economic Development - shovel-ready/good properties
f. Development on the west side (assigned to Economic Development and

AnnexationiESTJ committees)
g. Better flooding/drainage management: tap into experts, enforcement, purchase

signs with message that it is a violation to go around a barricade. (Assigned to
Environmental Committee to review and make recommendation)

h. Grants: a need for a professional grant writer; to be discussed through Budget
process

1. Preservation and definition of the Historical District (Mayor Pro Tern Brown will
meet with Historical Society and for guidance)

J. Downtown
k. Wastewater capital improvements

1. Need scheduled updated and how process works (approvals and
bottlenecks, perhaps a "chat sheet" of agency processes)

2. Ask Rick Kasberg to give monthly updates at BOAmeetings
3. Main Street/Royal Street maps and right-of-way

l. Follow-up on recent development projects: Stagecoach, Sanctuary
m. Streamline BOA workshops: Mayor and Administrator both bring forth

recommendations
n. Capital improvement projects: Budget workshops, drainage or street maintenance

fee to be addressed during the Budget process
o. Advertising (blue informational signs on Interstate)
p. Police Department

1. Staffing levels
2. Fleet
3. Reporting/Chain of Command
4. Consistency of message/information given out
5. 24-hour coverage
6. Ramp up the drug program
7. Public relations/education programs

There was discussion about staff evaluations. It was decided that the BOAwill conduct the
evaluation of the Chief of Police during the June 16, 2016, meeting and the evaluation of
the Village Administrator at the July 7, 2016, meeting.

Mayor Blancett adjourned the meeting at 11:40 a.m.

Skip Blancett, Mayor

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Minutes, Planning Workshop, June 4, 2016 • Page 2 of 2



Village of Salado, Texas
Board of Aldermen

Special Called Meeting and Workshop
Minutes

6:30 p.m. Thursday, June 9, 2016
Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road

Salado, Texas

Present: Mayor Skip Blancett, Alderman Amber Preston Dankert, Alderman Michael McDougal,
Alderman David Williams.

Absent: Mayor Pro Tempore Fred Brown; Alderman Frank Coachman.

Others Present: Chrissy Lee, Planning & Development; Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary.

I. Call to Order.

Mayor Blancett called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. He opened the meeting with
prayer.

II. Regular Agenda.

1. PUBLIC HEARING -- Presentation,public hearing and possible action on rezoning of
12.98+/- acres to PD-MU (Planned Development Mixed Use, PDD #1), generally located
at the intersection of Royal Street and Tablerock Road and commonly known as
Tablerock.

Ms. Lee explained that the Village's official zoning map shows this property as PDD #1,
but no documents can be located that confirm the original property was formally rezoned
in 2003. There are no meeting minutes or adopted ordinances for the original rezoning.
However, the applicant was able to provide staff a copy of a draft ordinance. The contents
of this ordinance has been used to develop the now proposed ordinance. She listed all the
approved uses of the property and noted that one new used as been requested: outdoor
movie theater.

Twenty-nine 200-foot notices were mailed. Five approvals and four denials were returned.
However, one citizen who sent a denial changed his response verbally after the request was
explained to him.

The Planning& Zoning Commission approved the request by a 5-0 vote.

Mayor Blancett called upon three citizens to speak prior to the start of the public hearing:

• Denver Mills, 2018 Indian Trail, owner of the property
• Michael Cooper, 2101 Bluff Circle
• Jackie Mills, 2018 Indian Trail, owner of the property

All spoke in favor of the request.

Mayor Blancett opened the public hearing at 6:51 p.m. and made the first call for

Minutes, Special Called Meeting& Workshop, June 9,2016' Page I of3

-- -- --------------------



speakers. On the second call, Pat Foster, 11 Royal View Road, came forward and spoke
in favor ofthe request. The Mayor made the third call at 6:53 p.m. No other speakers came
forward. He closed the public hearing st 6:53 p.m.

Alderman McDougal made a motion to approve the rezoning of 12.98+/- acres to PD
MU (Planned Development Mixed Use,PDD #1), generally located at the intersection of
Royal Street and Tablerock Road and commonly known as Tablerock, as presented.
Alderman Dankert seconded. The motion carried by a 3-0 vote.

2. PUBLIC HEARING - Presentation, public hearing and possible action on an Ordinance of
the Village of Salado, Texas, amending the Subdivision Ordinance, revising Section 3.1
Streets, Cul-De-Sac Length; revising Section 4.2 Protection of Drainage and Creek Areas;
revising Section 3.5 Sidewalks; revising Section 2.9 Amending Plats; delegating certain
approval authority to the Planning and Zoning Commission; delegating certain approval
authority to the Mayor/Village Administrator; revising Section 1.13 Definitions; revising
Section 2.2 Submission Materials and Completeness of Application; revising Section 3.1
General Adequacy of Streets Policy; and revising Section 2.9 Amending Plats.

Ms. Lee reviewed the amendments and explained that their purpose is to streamline the
applications process and eliminate numerous appearances before the Planning & Zoning
Commission and the Board of Aldermen.

There was lengthy discussion about two sections: Section 3.5, Sidewalks, and Section 4.2,
Protections of Drainage and Creek Areas. Discussion on Section 3.5 centered on whether
or not developers would have to out sidewalks on major collector streets, and the discussion
on Section 4.2 centered on restrictiveness aimed at property owners in the flood plain.

The Mayor opened the public hearing at 7:30 p.m. He called three times for speakers; none
emerged. He closed the public hearing at 7:31 p.m.

Alderman Williams made a motion to approve an Ordinance of the Village of Salado,
Texas, amending the Subdivision Ordinance, revising Section 3.1 Streets, Cul-De-Sac
Length; revising Section 4.2 Protection of Drainage and CreekAreas; revising Section 3.5
Sidewalks; revising Section 2.9 Amending Plats; delegating certain approval authority to
the Planning and Zoning Commission; delegating certain approval authority to the
Mayor/Village Administrator; revising Section 1.13 Definitions; revising Section 2.2
Submission Materials and Completeness of Application; revising Section 3.1 General
Adequacy of Streets Policy; and revising Section 2.9 Amending Plats. Alderman
McDougal seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 2-1 (AldermanDankert).

Mayor Blancett closed the Regular Session at 7 :41 p.m.

III. Workshop Session.

The Mayor opened the Workshop Session at 7:48 p.m.

3. Presentation and discussion on an ordinance relating to the intentional feeding and disposal
of deer.

Minutes, Special Called Meeting & Workshop, June 9,2016' Page 2 of3



Alderman Dankert explained that this is the same ordinance that came before the BOA in
2015, with the addition of the portion on disposal of deer. There was discussion on the
charges by the city for disposal of deer from private property. She explained that the Village
with will with Eagle Disposal. City workers can take a carcass to Eagle and put it directly
into one of the dump trucks. The Village will put together a publicity campaign to inform
citizens of the new regulations regarding feeding and disposal. Another Town Hall meeting
was suggested. Alderman Dankert also said a deer count will be conducted during
September. There was discussion about adding Exhibit B, which would be a form to hold
the Village harmless with respect to damage of property when picking up a carcass. The
Mayor directed staff to bring this ordinance forth for a vote at the June 16, 2016, meeting.

The Mayor closed the Workshop Session at 8:24 p.m.

Alderman Dankert made a motion to adjourn. Alderman McDougal seconded. The motion
carried unanimously.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

Skip Blancett, Mayor

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Minutes, Special Called Meeting & Workshop, June 9,2016· Page 3 of 3



BOARD OF ALDERMEN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

6/16/16
Item #5

Regular Agenda
Page 1 of 1

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Lyndsey Barrett, Court/FinanceAdministrator

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution (R-2016-142) establishing
a Purchasing Policy.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: The proposed Purchasing Policy was presented for discussion in
Workshop on May 26, 2016. The current policy is embedded within the Administrative Policies and Procedures and
does not give detailed procedures regarding up-to-date procurement practices.

A clearly written policy defines the expectations of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen regarding municipal
purchasing and provides clear direction and legal and responsible purchasing decisions on the part of the Village
staff and ensures that state and federal compliance. The proposed policy requires the Village to observe state and
federal laws and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The proposed policy introduces the use of purchase orders to ensure appropriate encumberment
of funds and provides detailed procedures regarding purchasing process, general purchasing provisions and limits,
expenditure authority, sealed bids, and contracts.

At the May 26, 2016, workshop, the BOA requested the addition of a Purchasing Contracting Officer; this was
added and is found on page 12 of the policy.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS:
• Resolution R-2016-142
• Purchasing Policy



......age
Salado

RESOLUTION R-2016-142

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE VILLAGE OF SALADO,
TEXAS, ADOPTING A PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL FOR
THE MANAGEMENT OF ALL PURCHASES BY THE VILLAGE; ESTABLISHING A
PURCHASING PROCESS; GENERAL PURCHASING PROVISIONS, INCLUDING
BIDS; PROCESS FOR CONTRACTS; ESTABLISHING PURCHASING LIMITS; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Village of Salado, Texas, is responsible for the legal and prudent handling of
public monies; and

WHEREAS, there are numerous sections of the Texas Local Government Code that provide
requirements regarding municipal purchasing; and

WHEREAS, state and federal rules and regulations set forth certain provisions regarding
municipal purchasing for the purpose of receiving federal funds; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) recommends that cities
adopt financial policies to clearly define the requirements for the handling of public
monies; and

WHEREAS, State law requires the Village to conduct an annual audit and the results of that audit
are dependent upon methods of purchasing that conform to state and federal laws and
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as set by GASB; and

WHEREAS, the Village's audit is used as the basis for the Village's bond rating; and

WHEREAS, a written policy defines the expectations of the Mayor and Board of Aldermen
regarding municipal purchasing and provides clear direction and legal and responsible
purchasing decisions on the part of the Village staff; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen have reviewed the Purchasing Policy manual and
believe the Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual should be adopted, to be effective
the 16th day ofJune, 2016,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
VILLAGE OF SALADO:

------ -



Section 1.

That the attached Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual is hereby approved and adopted as
the Purchasing Policy Manual for the Village of Salado, Texas, effective the 16th day of June,
2016.

APPROVED AND PASSED on the 16th day of June, 2016, by a vote of
__ (ayes) to __ (nays) to __ (abstentions).

VILLAGE OF SALADO, TEXAS

Skip Blancett, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary



e agee.,' "

. '_', . '

, - "_'----_.,_-_ .. ", .......•..... - ..•. ..•.. ..... ... ••...

Salado

Village of Salado, Texas

PURCHASING POLICIES
and PROCEDURES

MANUAL

May 23,2016

Page 1 of 18



Table of Contents

Introduction 3

Section 1. Procurement Policy .4
Responsibi1ity 4
Duties 4

Section 2. Purchasing Process S
Expenditure Authority S
Purchasing Limits and Process S

Purchases of less than $1,000 S
Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 (Budgeted) 6
Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 (Non-Budgeted) 6
Purchases of $3,000 to less than $2S,000 (Budgeted) 6
Purchases of$3,000 to less than $2S,000 (Non-Budgeted) 7
Purchases of $2S,000 or More (Budgeted/Non-Budgeted) 7

Petty Cash Purchases 8
End of Year Purchases 8

Section 3. General Purchasing Provisions 8
Sealed Bid Proposal/Qualification Procedure ($SO,OOO+) 8
Local Preference 9

Identical Bids 10
Exemptions from Bidding Process 10
Request for Qua1ifications .11
Other General Rules Applicable to all Purchases 11

Section 4. Contracts / Types of Contracts Types 11
Procurement Contracting Officer (PCO) 12
Summary of Recent Law and Associated Process 12
Change Orders 12
Legal Review 13

Section 5. Flowcharts - Purchasing Limits and Process 14
Purchases of less than $1,000 14
Purchases of$I,OOO to less than $3,000 (Budgeted/Non-Budgeted) IS
Purchases of $3,000 to less than $2S,000 (Budgeted/Non-Budgeted) 16
Purchases of$25,000 or More (BudgetedlNon-Budgeted) 17

Section 6. Forms and Contract Templates 18

Page 2 of 18
Village of Salado Purchasing Poi



INTRODUCTION

It is the policy of the Village of Salado that all purchasing shall be conducted strictly on the basis
of economic, business, and legal merit. This policy is intended to promote the best interest of the
citizens of the Village of Salado, Texas.

The Village of Salado Finance Department strives to comply with the legal requirements of public
purchasing and contracting as set forth in Texas State Statutes and all adopted Village Ordinances.
The goal of the policy is to provide procedures and guidelines to assist each department, the Village
Administrator, and the BOA to efficiently manage, control, and plan their available resources to
meet present and future departmental needs, to help the Village receive the maximum value for
each public dollar spent, and ensure expenditures are spent according to the BOA adopted budget
and priorities.

Additionally, the Village of Salado Finance Department commits to ensure that:

• Public funds are safeguarded. Although the Finance Department does not designate the
types of purchases to be made, it should see that the best value is received for the public
dollar.

• Responsible bidders are given a fair opportunity to compete for the Village's business.
This is done partially by the statutory requirements for competitive bids and proposals, and
partially by the Village's own purchasing policies and procedures.

Page3 of18



SECTION 1. PROCUREMENT POLICY

It is the policy of the Village to conduct procurement functions efficiently, effectively, and in full
compliance with all applicable State laws and all Village Ordinances. This policy and procedure
manual outlines the required procedures for purchasing goods and services and provides open and
fair competition for vendors and contractors. The authority to contract for all goods and services
rests with the Mayor, Board of Aldermen, and the Village Administrator, as specifically authorized
and delegated. Additionally, specified personnel in the Village's departments are authorized to
make purchases as provided herein.

Unauthorized personnel who attempt to contract on behalf of the Village of Salado, or personnel
making unauthorized purchases outside of the guidelines of this manual, may be subject to
disciplinary action, legal action, and personal financial liability. This includes any situation in
which a person makes or authorizes separate, sequential, or component purchases in an attempt to
avoid competitive bidding requirements.

If a Village employee fails to comply with the competitive bidding and/or competitive proposal
procedures required by Statute, that employee may be convicted of a Class B misdemeanor. In a
case in which the employee commits an offense in which the officer or employee intentionally or
knowingly violates the Statute, this may result in the employee being charged with a Class C
misdemeanor. (LGC Chapter 252.062 (a) (b) (c))

Responsibility

Each Village employee authorized to purchase goods, supplies, equipment, and/or services must
be familiar with the purchasing procedures established herein. These procedures are to be followed
by all employees and department heads in the procurement process.

Duties

Village Administrator - The Village Administrator oversees compliance with all procurement
requirements for the purchase of all goods and services established by Texas State and Local
Government Codes and the Village's Policies and Procedures by means of this manual.

Finance Administrator -The Finance Administrator administers the purchasing rules and
regulations as established by Texas State and Local Government Codes and the Village's policies
and procedures established herein; and

1. Ensures all procurement activities are conducted with the highest level of integrity and
ethical standards.

2. Provides suppliers and providers a fair opportunity to compete for Village business and
protect public funds.

Page 4 of18



3. Ensures purchases are made according to adopted budget and procedures.
4. Maintains records of capital assets in conjunction with the Village Secretary.
5. Determines and implements the most appropriate method of disposal of salvage/surplus

property.

Requesting Department Heads - The Department Heads will comply with all procurement policies
and procedures outlined in this manual. The Directors shall purchase the proper goods and services
in accordance with the adopted budget while guarding the misappropriation of funds.

1. Plan purchases to allow sufficient time to obtain bids, quotes or proposals.
2. Ensure adequate funds are appropriated.
3. Provide specifications for goods and services requested.

a. Delegate individuals as needed within the departments who have been properly trained
to prepare and issue specifications and request Purchase Orders in accordance with this
manual.

4. Provide documentation of any vendor's failure to perform as contracted.
5. Manage department expenditures.
6. Utilize forms and templates as required or needed.

SECTION 2. PURCHASING PROCESS

Expenditure Authority

The Village has attempted to incorporate local, state, and federal laws into this manual. The
Village, however, does not warrant that these policies include all such laws. Local, state, and
federal laws will prevail over these procedures where applicable.

Purchasing Limits and Process

Purchases of less than $1,000
1. Purchases less than $1,000 do not require verbal/written quotes or purchase orders.
2. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance

Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be the original.

3. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
4. Finance Administrator submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (l0) business

days.
5. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.

Page 5 of18
vn of Salado Pol



Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 (Budgeted)
1. Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 require verbal quotes (documentation submitted by

employee); internet documentation is acceptable. A Purchase Order is not required.
2. Department employee submits verbal quotes to Department Head prior to goods or services

being ordered for their written approval.
3. Once written approval is given, department employee can proceed with purchase.
4. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance

Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be theoriginal.

5. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
6. Finance Administrator submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (10) business

days.
7. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.

Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 (Non-Budgeted)
1. Purchases of $1,000 to less than $3,000 require verbal quotes (documentation submitted

by employee); internet documentation is acceptable. A Purchase Order is not required.
2. Department submits verbal quotes to the Finance Administrator prior to goods or services

being ordered to get written approval by the Village Administrator.
3. Once approved, Finance Administrator sends written notification to the department

instructing them to proceed with the purchase.
4. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance

Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be the original.

5. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
6. Finance Administrator submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (10) business

days.
7. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.

Purchases of $3,000 to less than $25,000 (Budgeted)
1. Purchases of$3,000 to less than $25,000 require a purchase order with written quotes from

at least three (3) vendors.
2. State Law (LGC252.0215) requires that purchases of more than $3,000 but less than $50,000

require contacting two (2) Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) on a rotating basis,
to give them a chance to bid on a product or service, in addition to non-HUB businesses.

3. Department submits purchase order and written quotes to the Finance Administrator prior
to goods or services being ordered.

4. Finance Administrator submits purchase order and written quotes to the Village
Administrator for written approval.

Page 6 of18

L-___________________ _ _ . _



5. Once approved, Finance Administrator sends written notification to the department
instructing them to proceed with the purchase.

6. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance
Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be the original.

7. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
S. Finance Admin. submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (10) business days.
9. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.

Purchases of $3,000to less than $25,000(Non-Budgeted)
1. Purchases of$3,000 to less than $25,000 require a Purchase Order with written quotes from

at least three (3) vendors.
2. State Law (LGC 252.0215) requires that purchases of morethan $3,000 but less than $49,999

require contacting two (2) Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) on a rotating basis,
to give them a chance to bid on a product or service, in addition to non-HUB businesses.

3. Department submits purchase order and written quotes to the Finance Administrator prior
to goods or services being ordered.

4. Finance Administrator submits purchase order and written quotes to the Village
Administrator for review, and then is placed on agenda for BoA approval.

5. Once approved, Finance Administrator sends written notification to the department
instructing them to proceed with the purchase.

6. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance
Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be the original.

7. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
S. Finance Admin. submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (10) business days.
9. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.

Purchases of $25,000or More (Budgeted/Non-Budgeted)
1. Purchases of $25,000 or More require a Purchase Order with written quotes from at least

three (3) vendors.
2. State Law (LGC 252.0215) requires that purchases of more than $3,000 but less than $49,999

require contacting two (2) Historically Underutilized Business (HUB) on a rotating basis,
to give them a chance to bid on a product or service, in addition to non-HUB businesses.

3. Department submits purchase order and written quotes to the Finance Administrator prior
to goods or services being ordered.

4. The Mayor and Board of Aldermen must vote to approve all purchases and/or contracts
with an anticipated annual expenditure of$25,000 and above.

5. Once approved, Finance Administrator sends written notification to the department

Page7 of18
of



instructing them to proceed with the purchase.
6. Departments must submit original invoice/receipt/check request to the Finance

Administrator ten (10) working days prior to due date or date needed for payment. The
invoice/receipt/check request must be the original.

7. Finance Administrator checks the documentation to ensure proper coding.
8. Finance Admin. submits payment directly to the vendor within ten (10) business days.
9. Finance Administrator retains check stub and supporting documentation as per record

retention policy.
10. Purchases that are expected to be more than $50,000 are required to be purchased through

competitive sealed bidding or competitive sealed proposal procedure for the purchase of
goods and services, including high technology items. (LGC 252.021)

11. For a list of exceptions to the general rule on competitive sealed bidding. Please refer to
(LGC252.022) and Section 2 herein.

Petty Cash Purchases
1. Petty cash disbursements of $50 or less should only be used for small incidental

expenditures and not as a method to bypass the Village's purchasing process.
2. The purpose of a petty cash fund is to provide departments with ready cash for the payment

of various small expenditures, such as postage, water, ice, etc.
3. The employee receiving the money must sign a petty cash receipt to acknowledge

acceptance of funds.
4. Original purchase receipts must be approved by the Department Head and turned in to the

Finance department.
5. Cash should be kept in a locked drawer in a petty cash box with the key in custodian's

(Finance Administrator's) possession.

End of Year Purchases

For end of year purchases that occur in September, Purchase Orders are due 30 days prior to the
last day of the Fiscal Year (September 30).

Section 3. General Purchasing Provisions

Sealed Bid Proposal/Qualification Procedure ($50,000+ expenditures)

1. The Department Head shall develop specifications for the purchase of goods and services,
based upon standards appropriate to meet the Village's needs. The specifications are
forwarded to the Village Administrator for approval.

2. The Department Head shall utilize the Form Request for Proposal/Qualification provided
by the Finance Department.

Page 8 of18
Pol



3. The Department Head, or designee, shall develop and ensure publishing of Public Notice,
including time and place the bid will be opened and in accordance with state law. This
information must be published in the official newspaper once a week for two consecutive
weeks prior to the time set for bid opening. The date of first publication must be at least 15
days before bid opening date.

4. The Department Head, or designee, shall mail, email, or deliver an "Invitation to Bid" to
potential bidders at least two weeks prior to the time of the public bid opening.

5. As part of the bidding process, the Village shall hold a pre-bid conference to answer
questions or make clarifications to potential bidders. The Village reserves the right to
amend/clarify the original RFP/RFQ as a result of information obtained at this conference.

6. All bids received must be filed unopened and shall not be accepted if turned in late.
7. On the date and time designated in the public notice, the bid shall be opened and read aloud

at a public meeting. A sign-in sheet must be present listing all persons attending the bid
opemng.

8. The Department Head, or designee, in cooperation with the Finance Department shall
prepare a written tabulation of the bids received and draft a memorandum to the Village
Admin. indicating the best bidder and the Department Head's recommendation for award.

9. Competitive sealed bids must be considered by the Board of Aldermen at a public meeting.
If the competitive sealed bidding requirement applies to a contract for goods and services,
the contract must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides
goods or services at the best value for the municipality. Guidelines can be found in (LGC
252.043(b)). For exceptions to the rules concerning the award of a contract see (LGC 252. 043(b)).

10. The Board of Aldermen has the right to reject any and all bids. (LGC 252.043(1))
11. Finance Administrator must retain all bids and related documentation as per record

retention policy. (LGC 252 Subchapter C)

Local Preference

The Village of Salado had adopted a resolution that the Board of Aldermen may award contracts
(that must otherwise go to the lowest bidders) to local bidders (place of business is in the
municipality) under the following limited situations:

1. The contract is for an expenditure of less than $100,000.
2. The local bidder is within 5% of the lowest price received by the municipality from a bidder

who does not reside in the municipality.
3. The Board of Aldermen determines in writing that the local bidder offers the best

combination of contract price and additional economic development opportunities for the
municipality by the contract award, including employment of residents of the municipality
and increased tax revenues to the municipality.

This provision does not apply to telecommunications or information services. The Municipality
retains the option of rejecting all bids. (LGC271.9051)

Page 9 of IS
Pol



Identical Bids - LGC §271.901

When the Village receives two or more bids that are identical, in nature and amount, as the lowest
and best bids, the Village will select the bidder as follows:

1. If only one (1) bidder submitting identical bids is a resident of the Village, the Village must
select that bidder. Otherwise, lots must be cast.

2. Casting lots must be in a manner prescribed by the Mayor of the Village and must be
conducted in the presence of the Board of Aldermen. All qualified bidders or their legal
representatives may be present at the casting oflots. (LGC 271.901)

Exemptions from Bidding Process

The following are exempt from the bidding process:

1. Emergency Purchases

The competitive bidding provisions do not apply for emergencies as follows:

a. Procurement made because of a public calamity that requires the immediate
appropriation of money to relieve the necessity of the municipality's residents or to
preserve the property of the municipality.

b. Procurement necessary to preserve or protect the public health or safety of the
municipality's residents.

c. Procurement necessary because of unforeseen damage to public machinery, equipment
or other property.

The Department Head may proceed with the procurement of goods, services or equipment
to relieve an emergency situation. The Department shall attach a memorandum describing
the emergency to the Purchase Order.

If the purchase will cost more than $3,000, an oral approval must be obtained from the
Village Administrator, and then written Purchase Order approval should be obtained as
soon as it practical.

If the emergency purchase is in excess of $50,000, the Village Administrator's written
approval must be obtained, in cooperation with the Mayor. Then the Finance Administrator
and the requesting Department Head will prepare the documentation necessary to have the
emergency purchase approved by the Board of Aldermen as soon as possible, even if it is
after the emergency has been remedied.

2. Sole Source Purchases (Goods/services only available through one vendor)
a. Patents, copyrights, secret processes, or monopolies

Page 10 of 18
Po!



b. Films, manuscripts, or books
c. Gas, water, and other utility services
d. Captive replacement parts or components for equipment
e. Books, papers and other library materials for a public library that are available only

from the person holding exclusive distribution rights to the materials
3. Procurementfor personal, professional, orplanning services.
4. Purchase of land or a right-of-way.
5. State Contracts - CO-OPPurchasing Program (LGC 271.082)
6. Interlocal Agreements (GC 791.025)
7. Further exemptions can befound (LGC 252.022)

Request for Qualifications - Personal, Professional, Planning Services

Although competitive bids/quotes are not required on personal, professional, or planning services,
it is the policy of the Village of Salado to utilize, in all cases, a Request for Qualifications (RFQ)
if the total fee for the service is expected to exceed $50,000 for any project. Selection shall be
based upon written evaluation criteria established in the RFQ. Contracts shall be awarded to those
asking fair, reasonable prices, as long as the fees are not higher than published, recommended
practices and fees for various applicable associations, and do not exceed the maximum provided
by state law. For architectural, engineering, and legal services, the fee is negotiated after selection
but prior to award. Full details can befound, Government Code 2254

Other General Rules Applicable to all Purchases

1. According to the Department Head's submittal, the Finance Administrator shall charge a
purchase to the appropriate account number, which should have available budgeted funds.

2. In case the appropriate account does not have available funds, the Department Head may
charge the expense to another line item within their respective department budget, so long
as it does not change total budgeted department expenditures or exceed $5,000. Charges
that exceed $5,000 must be approved by the Village Administrator. Funds budgeted for
capital reserves may not be utilized for other expenditures unless approved by the BoA.

3. No Village employee should knowingly make or authorize any separate, sequential or
component purchases to avoid the purchasing limits.

Section 4. Contracts / Contract Types

There are several types of contracting procedures with numerous exceptions. Employees are
responsible for knowing which type of contract is applicable and which exception may apply.
Village employees are required to use the standard contract templates that are provided by the
Finance Department.

Page 11 of 18
Policy



1. Annual/Term Contracts
a. Purchases of items or services may be acquired through annual contracts approved

according to expenditure authority and purchasing limits.
b. Contracts over $50,000 must be awarded on a competitive sealed bid/proposal basis.

2. Contracts requiring special terms:
a. Competitive sealed proposal contracts for construction projects of $1.5 million or less.

(LGC 252.043)
b. Contracts for amounts between $3,000 and $50,000. (HUB)
c. Lease-Purchase Agreements.
d. Contracts for professional or personal services.
e. Contracts for energy conservation measures.
f. Competitive sealed proposals for high technology procurement

(LGC 252.0215)
(LGC 271.005)
(GC 2254.001)
(LGC 302.001)
(LGC 252.042)

Procurement Contracting Officer (PCO):

The Village of Salado shall appoint a Procurement Contracting Officer to oversee all contracts that
exceed the amount of $25,000. The PCO is responsible for the following:

a. Ensure all requirements of law, regulations, and all other applicable procedures
including clearances and approvals, have been satisfied.

b. Ensure sufficient funds are available for obligation.
c. Ensure contractors receive fair and equitable treatment.
d. Request and consider the advice of purchasing agent In audit, law, engineering,

transportation, and other fields as appropriate.
e. Document that the proposed contract is in the best interest of the Village.

Summary of Recent Law and Associated Process:

Effective January 1, 2016, vendors who enter into contracts that are either in excess of $1 million
or subject to vote by the Board of Aldermen must file a Certificate of Interested Persons (Form
1295)with the Texas Ethics Commission (TEC).

1. All contracts that must be approvedby the Board of Aldermen or are in excess of$l million
must be given a tracking number. The tracking number is assigned by the Finance
Administrator.

2. Vendors or business entities (but not other governmental entities) must go online to the
Texas Ethics Commission to fill out and print the Certificate of Interested Parties.

3. The Form 1295must be signed by an authorized person from the business entity.
4. The Form 1295must be notarized.
5. After signature and notarization, the Form 1295 must be submitted to the Finance

Administrator.

Page 12 of 18

- -- -----------



6. The Finance Administrator will then acknowledge the Certificate of Interested Parties
online and retain the notarized copy with the Village records. The Finance Administrator
must acknowledge the Certificate of Interested Parties within 30 days of the approval of
the contract.

Change Orders

In the event it becomes necessary to make changes in the plans, specifications, or scope of work
after performance of a contract has been commenced, or it becomes necessary to decrease or
increase the quantity of work to be performed or materials, equipment or supplies to be furnished,
the Village Administrator or Board of Aldermen (as authorized under Purchasing Limits Section
herein) may approve change orders.

1. If the Contractor determines that a change in the work or contract price is required, the
Contractor must submit an estimate for increases or decreases due to such change.
a. The original contract price may not be increased by more than 25%.
b. The original contract price may not be decreased by more than 25% without the

consent of the contractor. (LGC 252.048)
2. Once the estimate is received from the Contractor, the department head must submit the

estimate to the Finance Administrator to properly execute according to the Village of
Salado purchasing limits.

3. If the Village Administrator or Board of Aldermen as applicable authorizes the change,
the Department Head will compute the reduction from or addition to the contract price due
to the change and will authorize the change in writing by the issuance of a Change Order.

4. The Contractor will not, and shall not, have an obligation to perform any change in the
work until a Change Order has been authorized and issued by the Village.

Legal Review

The Village Administrator or Village Secretary should send all contracts over $50,000 before
execution, to the Village Attorney for review and approval unless the contract is a standard
approved template.

Page 13 of 18



SECTION 5. Flowcharts - Purchasing Limits and Process

Page 14 of 18
\
,.,
'L POliCY



Policy





Page 17 of18



SECTION 6. Forms and Contract Templates

Forms may be created and or amended periodically by the Village Administrator and or Legal
Counsel.

PURCHASE ORDER
CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORM
CHANGE ORDER
CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS (FORM 1295) INSTRUCTIONS
CONTRACT TEMPLATES (VARIOUS TYPES)
RFPANDRFQ

of Salado Purchasing Ppi
Page 18 of18



BOARD OF ALDERMEN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

6/16/2016
Item #6

Page 1 of2

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Chrissy Lee, Planning and Development

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider and take action on waivers to Section 3.5, Sidewalks, and Section 5.50, Ramps,
of the Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinance 2009.03 for a construction plat of Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII,
a subdivision in the ETJ.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: This is the 8th phase in a multi-phase planned community. The Concept
Plan has been updated to reflect actual phased development build-out. Attached is a summary of the code provisions
that are requested to be waived.

Note: A Subdivision Ordinance amendment was passed at the BOA meeting on June 9, 2016, that alleviated the
requirement for internal sidewalks on lots half-acre or larger. Because all lots are one-half acre or greater, this waiver
for internal sidewalks is not needed. However, perimeter sidewalks and adjacent road improvements still are required
as per the Subdivision Ordinance and impact long-term thoroughfare viability and planning.

In order for waivers to be approved, the following findings must be made:

"a. General. Where the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends, and the Board of Aldermen finds, that undue
hardships will result from strict compliance with a certain provision(s) of this Ordinance, or where the purposes
of these regulations may be served to a greater extent by an alternative proposal, it may approve a
waiver/suspension from any portion of these regulations so that substantial justice may be done and the public
interest is secured, provided that the waiver/suspension shall not have the effect of nullifying the intent and
purpose of these regulations, and further provided that the Board of Aldermen shall not approve a
waiver/suspension unless it shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to it in each specific case that:

1. Granting the waiver/suspension will not be detrimental to the public safety, health or welfare, and will not
be injurious to other property or to the owners of other property, and the waiver/suspension will not prevent
the orderly subdivision of other property in the vicinity;

2. The conditions upon which the request for a waiver/suspension is based are unique to the property for which
the waiver/suspension is sought, and are not applicable generally to other property;

3. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape and/or topographical conditions of the specific
property involved, a particular hardship to the property owner would result, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried out;

4. The waiver/suspension will not in any manner vary the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance or
Comprehensive Plan or any other adopted planes) or ordinance(s) of the Village;

5. An alternate design will generally achieve the same result or intent as the standards and regulations prescribed
herein.



6/16/2016
Item #6

Page 2 of2

Such findings of the Board of Aldermen, together with the specific facts upon which such findings are based, shall
be incorporated into the official minutes of the Board of Aldermen meeting at which a waiver/suspension is
considered. A waiver/suspension from any provision of this Ordinance may be granted only when in harmony
with the general purpose and intent of this Ordinance so that the public health, safety and welfare may be secured
and substantial justice done. Pecuniary hardship to the property owner or developer, standing alone, shall not be
deemed to constitute undue hardship."

FISCAL IMPACT: Waiver of the perimeter street improvements and perimeter sidewalk will result in the
Village needing to identify funding for and to pay for the upgrades in the future.

P&Z RECOMMENDATION: The Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously at its June 7, 2016,
meeting to waive the requirements for Section 3.5, Sidewalks, and Section 5.5D, Ramps, for both internal and
external streets.

ATTACHMENTS:

• Letter of request fromApplicant's engineer
• Code provisions that apply to the waiver request
• Final Plat of Mill Creek Springs Phase VIII
• Concept Plan



Code Provisions That Apply to the Waiver Request

1) Section 3.1: Streets
c. Adequacy of Streets and Thoroughfares

5. Off-Site Improvements
Where traffic impact analysis demonstrates the need for such facilities, or where the Village
believes public safety is at risk, the property owner shall make such improvements to off-site
collector and arterial streets and intersections as are necessary to mitigate traffic impacts
generated by the development or in conjunction with related developments. The Village may
participate in the costs of oversize improvements with the property owner as set out herein,
and subject to the Village's cost participation policies on oversized improvements.

2) Section 3.5: Sidewalks
a. Pedestrian concrete walkways (sidewalks) not less than four feet (4') wide shall be required

within a residential subdivision on both sides of Type 1,2 and 3 streets, in accordance with the
Thoroughfare Plan and sidewalks not less than five feet (5') wide shall be provided within all
nonresidential developments and along all perimeter arterials, as set forth in the Village of
Salado's TCSS and in applicable state standards. Root barriers shall be installed underneath,
and along with the construction of, all required sidewalks. Barrier-free ramps shall be
constructed at all street intersections and at any other locations deemed appropriate by the
Village due to anticipated pedestrian travel patterns. Sidewalks shall be constructed within the
street right-of-way, one foot (1') away from the right-of-way line, and at least five feet (5') away
from the street curb. In certain instances, the Board of Aldermen may, at its sole discretion,
approve placement of the sidewalk adjacent or closer than five feet (5') to the curb provided
that such placement benefits the general public by allowing more space for landscaping, such
as for street trees, screening shrubs, and decorative walls and fences, and provided that the
width is increased to a minimum of five feet (5') of sidewalk pavement or to such a width as
may be needed in the interest of public safety.

b. All sidewalks along a perimeter roadway or arterial are considered part of the overall
development's required public improvements and shall be installed prior to acceptance of the
subdivision by the Village and prior to final plat approval, unless surety is provided, per Section
6. Inany event, a Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued for any lot within the subdivision
until the required sidewalks are in place or appropriate surety is provided.

3) Section 5.5: Street and Alley Improvements
d. Inaddition to the above mentioned minimum standards, barrier-free ramps for physically

challenged persons shall be constructed at all street comers, driveway approaches,
appropriate mid-block crosswalks, and in locations where accessible parking spaces are
provided. All barrier-free ramps and other accessibility considerations shall comply with
Section 228 of the Highway Safety Act, as currently amended, and with the Americans With
Disabilities Act (ADA), as amended.

4) Section 5.9: Improvement of Adjacent (Perimeter) Streets
a. When a proposed subdivision, whether residential or nonresidential, abuts on one or both

sides of an existing
substandard street, or on a planned or future road as shown on the Transportation Plan, being
substandard according to the then existing current Transportation Plan, the developer shall be
required to improve his or her reasonable share of the existing on-site facility as that term is
defined herein, including appurtenant sidewalks, barrier-free ramps, screening and



landscaping, median openings and/or left tum lanes (if a divided thoroughfare), storm
drainage structures, water quality or erosion controls, and other utilities as defined in Section
1.13, to bring the same to Village standards, or to replace it with a standard Village street as
determined by the traffic impact analysis, if required, at no cost to the Village.

b. The developer's share of improvements to a substandard perimeter road shall be fourteen feet
(14') of pavement (including curb, if any), which is approximately equivalent to half of a
collector street width (i.e., two through traffic lanes), along the entire front footage of the
subdivision, unless the traffic impact analysis, if required, indicates that some other pavement
width is needed to achieve and maintain an acceptable level of service on the roadway. If the
subdivision is to be located on both sides of the roadway, fourteen feet (14') of pavement
shall be constructed by the developer on each side of the road along the entire front footage of
the subdivision on each respective side of the road, unless the traffic impact analysis
determines otherwise. Design and construction of the roadway shall be in accordance with
the Village's Transportation Plan (with respect to right-of-way width and general location),
the TCSS Manual, and with any other applicable Village codes and ordinances. Depending
upon the specific roadway in question, and upon the traffic impact analysis results, any
oversizing above the fourteen-foot (14') width shall be borne by the Village, the County, the
State or by some other entity. The Board of Aldermen may, at its option, accept escrow
funds in lieu of immediate roadway construction if the subdivision derives principal access
from another improved roadway and if delaying construction and improvement of the road
will not harm or otherwise inconvenience neighboring property owners or the general public.

c. Streets which dead-end at power lines or similar rights-of-way or easements, and which are
intended for future extension across these rights-of-way or easements, shall be constructed in
the right-of-way or easement for halfthe distance across the right-of-way or easement, and
shall be further restricted as set forth in Section 3.1 of this Ordinance. As with any other
dead-end street, a note shall be placed on the final plat clearly labeling the dead-end streets
that will, at some point, be extended across the power line easement (or right-of-way), and
signage shall be placed at the end of the constructed street stub, such as on the barricade, also
stating that the street will be extended in the future. Signage size and lettering shall be large
enough to be legible by a person with normal vision at a distance of twenty feet (20').



TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC.
301NORTHTHIRDSTREET· TEMPLE.TEXAS76501• (254) 773-2400
F·1658 FAX· (254) 773-3996

April 21, 2016

Board of Alderman
Village of Salado
P.O. Box 219
Salado, TX 76571

Re: Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII

Dear Alderman:

On behalf of our client, Turley Associates, Inc. respectfully requests that the Board consider the following
request for variances to the Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinance for the Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII
development.

Section 3.5: Sidewalks

The Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinance requires that sidewalks not less than 4' wide be constructed
on both sides of residential streets and 5' wide along all perimeter arterials. Turley Associates, Inc.
requests that the Board of Alderman grant a variance to this requirement for this development.

This development is the current phase of a planned community that began more than a decade ago and
should be vested as such. None of the previous phases included the 4' sidewalk along both sides of the
residential streets. Construction of sidewalks for this phase would not provide any connectivity to other
pedestrian facilities.

The sidewalks along the residential streets would be located within Bell County right-of-way and Bell
County will not maintain sidewalks.

The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) requires public sidewalks to be constructed with no more than
a 5% running slope. This development has street grades in excess of 8%, which although meets the local
criteria for maximum street grades, will not meet ADA standards for sidewalk construction. Numerous
ramps, switchbacks and handrails would be necessary to achieve ADA compliance and there is not enough
room within the right-of-way to accomplish this.

Per the Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinances, a 5' wide sidewalk would be required along the frontage
of Blackberry Road. Turley Associates, Inc. requests a variance to the sidewalk ordinance at this location
as well. With the speeds along Blackberry Road, the lack of traditional curb and gutter and the existing
road side channels a sidewalk is not safe at this location. The roadside channels present a unique
challenge to constructing sidewalk along Blackberry. The channels begin almost adjacent to the edge of

Page 1 of 2

ENGINEERING • SURVEYING • PLANNING



existing asphalt and are l' to 2' in depth and extend to the property lines of Blackberry. Bell County has
stated that these channels must remain in order to convey drainage along Blackberry. Any placement of
sidewalk within the right-of-way will result in the alteration of these channels and a loss of capacity. If a
sidewalk were to be constructed a handrail would be required between the sidewalk and the drainage
channel to be in ADA compliance. Also, a sidewalk in this location would not provide any connectivity to
other pedestrian facilities.

Section 3.1: Streets (3.1.c.5)

This section of the Subdivision Ordinance discusses Off-Site Improvements to perimeter streets, for this
project that would be Blackberry Road. Blackberry Road in its entirety lies outside of the Village of Salado
City Limits and is owned and maintained by Bell County. Currently the County has 50' of right-of-way for
this road. The County and the Village have asked that an additional 5' of right-of-way be dedicated with
this plat. The plat has been adjusted so that 0.397 acres of land is being dedicated to Bell County for right
of-way purposes.

Blackberry Road is built to a rural cross section, that is with no curb and gutter and with roadside channels.
Storm water from upstream of the proposed development flows through the roadside swales along with
runoff from the project and continues to flow alongside Blackberry Road for approximately 2000' before
being collected into a culvert at Marie. If Yz street improvements are required to bring Blackberry Road
up to the Village of Salado standards it will compromise the existing drainage facilities. Currently Yz ofthe
street is approximately 10' wide with a road side ditch whose top width is approximately 20' wide. This
equals the existing width of the right of way plus the additional 5' of right-of-way that has been dedicated.
A Y2street meeting the Village of Salado collector standards is 20' wide with ribbon curb. It is not physically
possible to achieve a 20' wide channel and a 20' wide Yz street within this portion of Blackberry Road.

Turley Associates, Inc. requests that the Board of Alderman grant a variance to the requirement to
improve Yz of Blackberry Road to Village of Salado collector width standards.

On behalf of our client, we would like to thank the Board for your consideration. Please feel free to call
to discuss any questions or concerns that you might have regarding this project.

Sincerely,

TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC.ca~v~~~
Jennifer Ryken, P.E.,C.F.M.
Project Engineer

CC: Mr. Bryan Neaves, P.E., Bell County Engineer's Office
Mr. Hal Anderson, Mill Creek Resources, Ltd.
Mr. John A. Simcik, P.E., C.F.M., KPA

Page 2 of 2



o-ceoci
9IDaE!lNJIIdBDIlt.m!JIZ:~
l ,0 l 133HS
99£-91 :"oNear

JIOOB Hld1

;::
;=
r-

~ Q~ ~
_g~ A~
M~:::O t
~~ ~8
(/)~3~
""AI~ ~
- Y'

r:
--<o

[J
fN91-~ , m:II;I MTINIfINl
0009<;001' "~,I3fo.~

&\IJ<Jl'.uM'(IQ.... 'Carnn: .... _M~~__ OIWOJIoIINI_ ..... _·_ _._'OII.I_.~_...,..1II..IO _.~,.,
S3IOV t,,'1)l;

sxxna c 'SJ.O, sz
IlIA ~SVIIJ

SONnIdS

"?nG22"-.=~=l"1!.·~~~.=r=:.;!."!': .=:=~
CIU~I1Jn""UJ ~o....."."~I IO~1 _ 1'1'01 0lI/I jO Mo..", 101""",,:)0 put> 1_0

UDlUOljU>td·IIIIPIJOdlJdIIDIII.(,lII.J~,(qa.IMIOP·at·"'·]~O!l'l'IIDill

·S..l~]S)Hlj,fIN)IoIT1WM()N)IJfaEiJJ If!.W

~ ---- ......,.~~P~~~"if(b1'F-
~",na.y

:'".::;,~.=;:,J~;-~~ ~=~
..eou,.:uPRC""~IV>lA~.cq.J"'OP~·'~~1"'U

~1OOIl~!II<DH)'I.U., __ ""QIOIj~

lllYwa AI..:torDII.ClI."""'_"'i'lnJ.1f DIt)¥ ""1)1:
l~"'" ~1~.1"~~1~'~~ ..;~.Z~~~

"'0111'0 -IlCII:1 lAIliIIUtllIJlU_
"~t;rl '.nUl! 3N.~':JIlL'''' '_n. 1..-m1\JlA_
::wet" 'n"::l 3111l:1li"':11"-..

1"'~1r.uUS~.I ....-..n.-lMJtlI.I""'fIllI
1IIl.lUllf"tt) TDI Dt ~lllOm:JII :II TlII'H~SJII:IWU£'O •• l:!Wl 'L

'IO..IIIIXIS~"
SIGll\Il:JOlS!lNUId$l!JJ¥:)11111:yu .... U:ll91.1ll'..... _

~:JITlWIft;_~UJ~8JftI:£NNJVlllliIUU;iZl"llln
181-....s:r.Jll:Jl'l2f.O-:)l)OlllII,.,~W..'- .. i:Jll'll,l,.

'II_.IfIIlllOIt1II~.uo
U3XJlI ~Y.OIIoITMi!lllt)!I'lI ~"""'I OW., 1'8<1 t arm '

'8OOiI·~lLJI~dJSIUJ.YII·3D!ll:tlL_'DIW"BIIOil·'R

~~~~~e~~ii;~
'3I[(S Jl:l!jiS MI1I1) 1m JH3IrJSWluI"lun.!>I01 InrBl$ .!:JITI'e

"S;N~lI1l~~l~~~~.~~l:~:nt'~.~
'Ul,D« JSJI'IIOUC S'lTH\

~.~ S"ldlI.aJdWlS.tr.J NW' DIlII_ .211 __ ~"T1II 1
"'~

'9102 '0'1;1 .-----J(J .l.l;Ia--~l SIHl (13.1116

l'f"d SH·U 1.11
03l1N:lSJO.u.~D&I 3U t.f) .l.ltnll "lII ~ !)1~lSla 1¥SI'<md<N

X"1 31011 III :nJ S3J(\H IIG"lON'131l 1).1 .I.'lN3~~J 3II'd 3IBU
Jdl1lf3:l .l.1I~ $](11' UNrm Tl]ll[ JO UI~U!(1 '1Io'S1ltl'JdcN )1111311'-l'=,t:~~lUOWl\llAl! _~,!poo

"~.1 .~~ III'!III' _lOkI .--, J...... --_

--,. "--"'11 O~~ HQ)I!I3'ltJ.

.1:IIUd1t.~:rww.lJlfC)l1JI--------

~lWlIDI:MlOlIIlDI)MSlI1MBlItW'J~JlS-~!lIIIIfWI:)
SIOI'oTO:IllJff'Olltll'lI.'JSJ1Jt.IIIcWI'IUI~lW(lJQl,JljIlDlS'ltlI«lQ\GIM
!:M.IIII!IUnmlllUl'!M'llllllYlS.HII_IIII'SOMlISl!tll!lY'lI1IOSIiJlI1)i1'1

JO (.,,-_ '~6JO JO p.. "....._~ 4~ ... ".... ......19

,...._ .... ~ .~"" ........,,_~ p~. _...., 0Il1 ""_ .w"" __ n~..... t __ lOt p""p~ "".

·:=::::::::;-:'lJ,,:~o.:..~;~..::t-.~~~o·l~~,:,"'Uo~";.r'"~
~ __ ~. _ "'" 'CD>< •• 6" "' ...., __ ) ........ 'fP\d~..........~.._,.,. ,....e.oMlOll' .............. ~..

!I3NlWd~SlI··JT'.lH3I'G~)l33Il:1TJJ11:JJj
dIHSl.I3N1IM:lO~,,"'y··on 'S30tIf1OS::RI)l33M0T11I'1 '/.13

-----~ ""--.lHl 511<1'O_l HI SS3N.l-l.....

'5'tXl1 'J.J.NI10:> TOO.JO OWY SVJ(]1 'ClCN'l'I'S.Kl 3I)'(l1\o\)Hi JO
SNOO./l1OS3ll otf'r' Si'fOl.lV'lnD~ 'S31n8 'S~ OIoIEllYlc:ll~ 01 ioarsns ~ lYld SIU

"lNO~~NOISSIfQIld~nXlltd~I1JJN
:wJ:l3dS3M Y3m ,10 Sl.Wd MO nw !)~ I:D OJ ~IOOY

'~"'d'OMl.)ldSHl '~NOO]W'~:l
3M.:lJdS3W I;I]fU NOW OH'I' ill sssea CIh'¥ SS3tImI :10 ~

S31J.1J.N3noun :lI1S0d ONV J.J.HnOO 11]9 'OOV"NS j() 3'JVT1Io\
l"lla3dS3N ~l ~o A;)N]I:'>I,u) WO '~Ii'~~ 'UOI1..'lflIIISNO:'> 3H1 HlJ" J~3.nn.lNI 110 HlDN'I'ONJ

A'iM :;: ~ ~~:>IW':l;_~~ ~::g~H~ ~~KlHS;'~]~~:'>~u~iNm~
:)I190d ONV .w«1CO 1139 'OOW'M jO :Y.7W'TlVI :.u. '.:I03ellHJ 350 SeUNi"IOO "T1lS OIN S,OOVlVS

:10 ~ CtN S,:)f'181'\d 3HJ. 01 3l~S ;t<II39 SltUllin ~:JH.I_ AS ]Sn OI¥S 'gUf1W)

.:I '!iA3Tlt ONV S.133WS 3HJ.'~ NMOHS SJJG~I
YlBI\d W3Hl.O otN 'A'I'M-jO-SJH:lI!I 'SJ.33WS lHl 'U]I\l~ICU ]Sn :>nand lHJ 01 ']l<l"llS

l3.;/ tfI 'll'I':IICBCI A93l13HS300 OIoN '!MGJ. 'AlNtlO'JTI3B 'OO't'lVS:IO 3O'I'T1Io\3HJ.j() NOU.:lIOSIIInI'
"'MW1IH!B1Wl.G3Hl. NI :lNBB ONY SV'X31 'AlIIIf1(l.') TllEI ru I«lUJ()(JWHIt '1110\ lS¥Hd 'S!lNII:IdS

)IJ3!jO'T1l"SV~0J8I1:IOS303Nl8'I'NI3I:BH3H.l.:>NIl.WNOIS3CJJ.V1dSIHJ..IdOO't'A8JY3HSJO(J
'~WO CJZII:IQHlf'l't' All'll') SJJ H:;K'I!»IHl OHW A8 MI3tI]H~NU:W "011 'SDti~ ~ n..lYHl

\
'SIN3S3Hd 3S3Hl A8 N3~ TN MON)! '3~O..:l3~3Hl 'MON

( NOl1dI~:;)S30SONn08 OtN S313~ 00..:1lY1d 51H! 3D Z 1J3H5 l:;)N3tl3_f3~ )

:Sf.\011O..:ISV a38t:;)530 A1H'1f1n::>illNd
3~ON ~>N138ONl! SV)(31 'AlNflO3 1138 ..:105Q~OO3~ :;)l1and lVI:;)1j30

'OLS 35\>'d '9lSg 3r<nl0A Nt m:IO::13~..:10!lNi38 aN\.' .,OOZ '9l ~80J.:)O
031VO 0330 ,uN'nJ~M A8 t'4lHl 01 03A3ANO:;)ON\f1 ..:101:)V~1 3~3\>' ~9'r7.
V ONV SVX3.1'.I..1Nno:;)1138 .:10 SQ~OJ3~:;)l1snd 1VI:;)I..:I..:I0'9gZ 3~\fd '999£

3rmlOA NI O~O:)3~ .:10~N138 ONli L661 '61 l:I38~31d35 31VO 0330 AJ.~(:f\fM
AS 113Hl 01 03A3ANOJ 1::M:I1 3KW £'96'OtZ V .:10 !nO ~Nt38 ONlf SVX31

A.l.NnD:;) 1139 'tgg 'ON J.:)~1S8V 'A3AHClSlVDI~OYI't 3ddnl.:l ]Hl Nt 031'tin1l5
ON't'1 3D 1::MU 'II .:10l:I3NMOlH1 51 '011 '53~nOS3~ >43:nJJlllN 'SV]N]HM

11]8 .:10,uNClO:)
S'ttX]1 JO 3JV1S

,/
/



:SIIl!J

( E] a~utp:SiItMOnOJal{l,peJl fU:'IP.BS9'EZpies o::!l{lSf.:O.IJP.pue .10011\0SnrnU!lUOJpUP.
:peJ) aJJe £96'OtZ Ples o:Ilf.I SSOJ:>P.pup. J(}J\Opup.I\. ase4d 'sSupdS >{aaJJm~ p,es
alp JOaun AJepunoq lsea alfl ql!M pU'e"V.LJV,U.. P!p.satfl ~uQ,lCdap 3JNHHl

0-£'80£'1
on~dmr.mr:mDI ~~

JO z 133HS
98£:-9'[ :DN 80r

>IOOB 131>31

~====~
;;;:
rr-

V> (")

f:. ~
,86 ~~
;;:l ~::Dt
~ ~ Gja
tflt;; g~
~~ ::0

~ ~~ Y'
r
-fo

o
g~ \ J , MiL:! ~33N19N]
ooo91;00LI Mill ~ns

pue t\.fJaq)fJPI8~s3upds >jaaJJ mw pres 't 1f_JOIS'01 101 ]0 aun-·.(Jepunoq-qlJOU :sneJ (6) aunr SU!MOnOjaql
aqllp!M Burmmuoo pue 1JeJl uoueotpap ,.{l!'M~]O~ll{~PPIESalILJo aun hepunoq :tJP.J:laace £96'OtZ pres aql SSOJ:lepUR.1,"'.08U1nUl1UOJpue rrau aJJP-l£9'lZ ptas
41JOU(4) 4l!Mpue iae,n aaoe BS9'f.Zpres aql JOaU!f.uepunoq qanos al.plfl-!Mpun aql SSOJJepUP.JaAOpm~Aasel{d 's~updS ">faal)Il!Wpres alp8up,IP.dap 3JN3Hl
'U!I AeM-Jo-'4~!l,SOMpres aip Buuredap ,oaJ £9'£51 "M" 10 ,81 00£ 'N 3JN3HL

:J~::nJJo:JJOJE"JOISPIes '1101 JO.rauroaaseaqmos
»eurco.roj.sexaj 'Aluno) alfl3u!aq puc E1{Joo[H'2: 101PIes inn JO.ieurooasaatn.rou aqi BuraqpunoJ ..5l.vZ

lias jO spJOJa}llp.ld 'a-061 "PHS'J FlulqeJ UIp.rcoar JO~ulaq hJJaq}f;n?lB~s;juJJdSSldU" padurtus deo If.HMpOJ UOJl ,,<fr: e 01 E JfJOIS PIes 'z .101 JO au!!
>{aaJJmw JOleTdJOduur aql or 8U1PJOJJesasodmd heM~]0~lq3J1'JOjAluno) lIag- ,.{Jp.punoqasea alp qlJMgumuuuco puc E"J019 'E ).01PIes alfll0 aun xrepcncq
01 pa]l?:llpappuer JO:pell e }OlaUJOJ lse.HfUou atll 8u!aq pue peXi .UJRBS9'EZ lsea alfl ql!M pue a'un .r\eM~Jo-lqZlpqlJOUP!es aq1-3uJlJedap ( a~zs apHS
PIes aql JOlaUJO) lsmnpnos aql ~u!aq punoJ pOJ UOJ!",lit e 01 <:lUllAeM-Jo~lq3Jl'a liJU!qe) uJ laiJj tL.'18l "3 "Sl ,52 oSE 's sneJ] laiJJvelBZ "M ..U: ,61 oBE 'N(E
lsaM PIes alp l{l!M pue peJl alJe BS9'[Z PIes aq) JO aun £Iepunoq lSRa
alp ql!MA~MlJedpue .pel). aJ:)~ £:96'Otz PIes a4))0 au!! ..uepunoq'l~ea aql tplM !JaUJo:JJ01E>pol8'E )-01PI~siHllJoJaUJOJls~a4lnos
pue pel1 aue SIC}. l PIES.HIl~up.ledap laaj OS'SSt1"M ,,10 ,55 oL.l 's 3JN3Hl alp ~u!aq punoJ "SLvZSldlf.. padwRls deJ 41!MpOl UOJ!"ZIt e 01aUlTAJepunoq

l{lnos PIESaql q)!Mpue em!l AeM-JO-l4~PtpJOUPIes aql 41!M( 0-Z5 ap!IS '(J

:JClUJOJlOJpunoJ3 alfl uo paJUapIAapue pa:maJ 'p.ndnJJo )aU!qEJU!)<:I<:Ij £O'tOI SHeJ] :ual aLp0:),alUnJ P!P.SJOJJP.alfl SUOlP.laaJ ~iS'£01(Z
'Sp.xa.L'A')unoJnas JOspJoJa):fleld 'O~lS apHS'0 l~)ll!qe) se ( Ap.MpeOJpaUlelU!B'UI.{PHqnd e J peo')j ,.{,uaq1f_:>etfl]0 aun AeM~Jo~lqSp

'I\. aseqd 's8ufJdS >jm:lJ)mw aUHl(.n'!punoqlS(!a "3 ,,9£ ,tZ oll 'S :ase8 ~uJJ(!a8 lsaM "'41 Ul 3ulaq pue peJl al:>p.f.96'OtZ P~p.saq) jO J;:mJOJlseatpJOu -a1.{l . ~JaUJOJJOj(a~zs apHS'0 1aU!qe)UIlaa] OC£Ol "M ..E£ ,8£ 06S"SsneJ
~ulaq pue )JeJ) aJJe SICII P11'!Salll JOJ.HUOJ)Sealllnos a1.1l-Su!aq punoj ,,5L.tZ ) laaJ ZZ'f.Ol '"3 lilt ,0'17,,6S 'N slenba ~u1Jp.aqPJOll:l'( a~zsapHS'a l:Julqe)
Sldll .. padwp.ls dp.::lIn!M pOJ UOJ!,,~ e Ol ",ulTAJcpunoq ,Aflatpnos PIes alp uJ :iaaJ OO'SL.£sne:>) lAAJOO·SL.£spmba SnlpeJ e SUIAeqljal aql 01 aA.m:>
pue aUHA.lP.punoq,.{paq:pouPIes aql lfl!MlaaJ OS'L.Ot"3 "ZEi6v 0'69'S ilJNHH.LluaSuel~uou P.JOSU!uutSaqaql lP.Su!aq pue I\. aseqd 'sSupdS )faal) mw PIes

'£ >1:JOI8'£ )01 JOaun .vepunoq qlnos alll U!SUlaqpue .MPQMall\."Jed pres aql
JOaun AeM-Jo~lqSptnJOUaql U!SuWqpunoJ "SL.VZSldll .. padunns de:J41!M.
pOJ UOJ!,,7ft- e Ol a-zs apHS'0 laulqeJ PIes UIpaqpJsap se aAlJa MalA}fJed
]0 heM-lo~lqSJ.lal.Jlsso..oe pue .JaAO~u!nu!-luD:)pue I\. aselld 'sSupdS _)faa-lJ
mw 's >poI9 '8 101 PIes aLJl.10aUHAJEpunoqlsea alll ql!M ( asea 3upeas )

la-Z5 'PHS
'0 ,ou!qeJ Uj,.aJ 88'192 "3 ,,9£ ,VZoZZ'S sileo) ,.oJ .8·19Z'·M ,,9£ ,n oZZ 'N(1

J;W1W'~TUllJI~~~ ""CMo_'·".""...,._:;w.n;u""'lJl ... ·._lJmo
S:nIJV 10-99'0(';

ssoo'ia £ 'SlO'19'l'
IILl :ilSlfHd

SQNICldS
>fClCl.lJ WJV•:W~lV1d"""NlJ

S10l 'll JaqwaAoN
ZOt5# 'S'Td'll 'S!AIV'3 lae4JIW

~.,)Yh/
P''' ~ ". :JaUJO:J10JsExa.L'AtunoJ naS JOSPJoJali Jnqnd jePYJO'OvLOOOOO~800Z

'ONwawnJOa Ul pl0JaJ JO 3u1aq PUI:?,.{JElSUiJJ1e9 a!p08 01 AJe).S..uJ~S
A:n<lHUJ0.gBOOZ'£ ,{mnuer palep paaQ A)UEJJEMleJauao e UlpaqpJsap PUE!I
JOpe,n a,l)e SlL:n u!E!)-laJleql JOaun AJEpunoqAIJa41nOS~ql u!:,8utaq pUP.
peJl alJe £:96'OVZPIE!S<JLfljO aUlT,.{lepunoqApaquou alp U!3ulaq las ..SL.tZ

'punoJ~ <=Il.lluo apew S1dl1" padwRls de:J 41~MpOJ UOJl ,,'ft e Ol )aaJ 10:Sll "3 ,,90 ,BE 061 'N (6
,.{alUnse JOuOQRluasaldaJ lJaJJO:l e tue salon Play as-aql leql AJpJi)JAqaJal.Jop
'sExa,t )0 a.lP.)Saql U!Jo,.{a!\.lnspue1 leuo!SS<l)Oldpal<}).S!~a):fe 'S!AIV'3 laeqJ!W ') ~JaUJO:ll0J.)as"Sf.tZ S1d1f"padwels

deJ llllM pOl UOJ!,/fr e 01 lJal aql 01 aAlnJ P!ESJO:HEalfl ~uole laaJ £1"Bl (S

~,laUJOJJOJ
laaj Er8I "M ..8t ,60 ot9 'N sfp.nba~ulJeaq plOlp 'laaj 6£:'f.£lS srenba snIPEl

'puP.lJosaJJe t99'Ol SU!U!l!lUO:lpue 89NrNNI938 P. 3U!heqlJaI alp 0) aAJnJ luaSuel~uou e JO3u!uu~~aqaqlle 8u!aq las ,,5ltZ
jO lUlOd alp 01 P1Ul ,UJe £96'OVZ P!p.s aql SSOJJe pue JaAO 8u!nuquoJ S1d}l" padwels de:J qllM pOJ U01! 31- e 0.) laaJ BS'SOZ"3 ,;95 ,SZ 081 'N (1.
pue ,,'I..l)VlI.I, PIp.sal{lJOau!!AJepunoqhpalsea al{ll.[l!Mpue .uJaq>fJels-s~uudS
~ao.lJ mw pIes 01fl ~ull.ledap ,ao) £6'ZZZ "M ,,51 ,£5 095'N 3JN3HL :.Iau.loJ.lopas "SLtZ

Sld}l" padwp,)s deJ lfHMpOl UO-ll,,'ih: e 01 laaJ BS'Sll "3 (,EO'-,L.-5ov9 'S(9
~JaUJOJJO)I\. astHld'sflupdS >1:aa-lJ'lHNJoltqd JOdew

pres alfl o:a 8U!pl0JJe "V"lJVM.Lse paqpJsap puel .10lJeJ) e ]0 laUJOJ )Seaq1nos !JawoJ,Joj las 'iSLtl
hp'J)sea lsom al.[l flu!aq pue A.JJaQ}{JPIS'",s3updSlfa<JJJmw PIes ''[ )jJOIB '8 SldlL padUlP.lsde.) tp!M pOl U01! ..¥t; e 01 laaj £S'LtZ "g ..lS ,'6-1091 'N (S
101 JOaU!1.tUepunoq15aMal{1ur ~ulaq punoJ pOJUOJ1,,~EOlAJJaq.>fJE!m~S~U!JdS
)faalJ mw p~es al{l jO aUB AJepunoq 15aM aql 1I1J'.Mpue l:)eJl aJJe E96'Otl ~JaUJOJJOJ
p~RSaql SSOJ:>I?pue JaAOSU!nU!lUOJlaaJ 69'61Z "M ..80 ,BO061 'S 3JNHH.L las "SL.tl Sld):f"padUJP.:1sdeJ 4l!MpOJUOJ!..7fr e OllaaJ 09'Zl "3 ..£.£. ,1:l 069 ·S(v

:JaUJO:lJO)t )lJOm'01 :JaUJOJ10pas "Sl'-tl
l01 pres aql JOau!! AJepunoq lsaM al{luJ lurod al~ue UR-3ulaq puno) pOJUOJ!..ZIt Sldll .. padruelS de.) q.l-!MpOJ UOJ!,,~ e 01 laa} lB'51Z "3 ..lZ ,ZS oBI 'N-(E
e 01 A.uaq>pelB-s3updS >[aaJJ mw '1 >{:'Iore'01 lOl 'mes al{l JO .mn A,lepunoq
lsaM aq) l.Jl!Mpuc pell anI'! £96'Otl PIes atp SSOlJe pue JaAO~"lnUpUOJ !J.mion10jHS "S£tZ
pue pe" ane 859'£Z PIRS04' SUQ.lpdop,oaJ 08·tn '·M..,,£l ,[0 or.·s 3JN3HL Sldll" padw"ls deJ 4'!M pOJ UO.l!..'" e '" ,oa) 08'9£l "3 "W ,tT 089 'S (Z

!.IaIJJO::lJOJ1 >{JOI8'01101 P~p.s'al{lJO.laU.iOJlsaMqll0u ~JaUl0JJOll~S "SLtZ
alp ~u~aq punoj pOJ UOJ!"lit e Ol pell aJJe E96'OtZ pres a41 SSOlJepue JaAOSldl:J" padwB'ls deJ ql!M pOJ UOJ1..¥r e 01 laa.1 06',v6£ "3 ,,6l ,ot ol£ 'N (1

:JaU-lOJ10j a~zs
apHS'a l<JuNeJPJesUJ"V.LJ"lU ..se paqpJsap PUt?IJOnell aDe 6l6'0 e JOlaUJOJ
lSp.aqlJouatll'8maq pue sexal. 'Aluno) nag jOSplOJa}tlP.!d'a~zs apITS'a laU!qeJ
"!,PlO:>'<:Il '10lBId JOdew a1.1l013UJP10JJeA aseYd 's8uprlS >{aa-lJlI!W's }fJOIB'8
101 jo 1all.lOJlseatpnos 8t{l ~ulaq PUElJP..fl. a.lJE£96'OtZ PIes aql jOlUIOdIEUltJlU!
ue 3ulaq puna] ..5L.vl Sldll .. padwp')s deJ lp.!MpOJ U01!..¥t e le 8NINNI~3S

:sMOHO}se
spunoq pUe"SalaWhq paqpJsap ApelnJ!lled aJOWlju!aq puP,sexal ',.{JunoJnag JO
Sp-lO:Ja}lJ!-{qndlePYJO'OLSaged 'BISS amnloi\ U!pJO.1;;)JJOlilulaqpue dJLJsJaUlled
Pdl!lU!1 sexaJ. p. "Pll 'saJJnOSall >(aaJ) mw Ol i=lDpeW '1 eJES pue :uolU!H
'S aof ~JalSaH'N a~jOa9 ~dIt{SJalJl.ledpal!Wn sex-al e "P11 '!ldVVM UTOJJtOOl
'9Z JaqolJO P;llP.Ppaaa tUueJJeM e u~paqr.L1sappueI JOPCJl aJJe SS9'£ZUle-lla:>
1eql JOuopl0d JOned e SUlaqpuc seX<ll'AlunoJ nag }OSPJOJ<J}:I:>!lqndIP.p!JJO
'8SZ aSed 'S89£ aumloA II~pJo:laJ JO8u~<}qpue dr4sJaulJed pa)!w!1 sexa! e "Pll
'sa:lJ.nosa(fltClalJmw' OlJdlSClHuuv l{lnll 'aJ~Mpue lalsaH 'N a~boa~ LUOJjL66 L
'61 Jaqwaldas palep paao AlueJleM e ul pCIQ!JJsappuel .10peJl aJJe £96'01>-Z
ule-uaJ-lel1l]O uOJlJod-lo)..rede ~ulaq pue sexa.L'.{JunoJ naa'tSS 'ON.tJVlI.LS8V
'A3AlInS lV!)llIOVW3ddll3d aljl U! p.,en,ls puel )0 1J." ane t99'OZ p !)N138





BOARD OF ALDERMEN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

6/16/2016
Item #7

Page 10f2

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Chrissy Lee, Planning and Development

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider and take action on waivers to Section 3.1C5, Offsite Improvements, and Section
5.9, Perimeter Street Improvements, of the Village of Salado Subdivision Ordinance 2009.03 for a construction plat
of Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII, a subdivision in the ETJ.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: This is the 8th phase in a multi-phase planned community. The Concept
Plan has been updated to reflect actual phased development build-out. Attached is a summary of the code provisions
that are requested to be waived.

In order for waivers to be approved, the following findings must be made:

"a. General. Where the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends, and the Board of Aldermen finds, that undue
hardships will result from strict compliance with a certain provision(s) of this Ordinance, or where the purposes
of these regulations may be served to a greater extent by an alternative proposal, it may approve a
waiver/suspension from any portion of these regulations so that substantial justice may be done and the public
interest is secured, provided that the waiver/suspension shall not have the effect of nullifying the intent and
purpose of these regulations, and further provided that the Board of Aldermen shall not approve a
waiver/suspension unless it shall make findings based upon the evidence presented to it in each specific case that:

1. Granting the waiver/suspension will not be detrimental to the public safety, health or welfare, and will not
be injurious to other property or to the owners of other property, and the waiver/suspension will not prevent
the orderly subdivision of other property in the vicinity;

2. The conditions upon which the request for a waiver/suspension is based are unique to the property for which
the waiver/suspension is sought, and are not applicable generally to other property;

3. Because of the particular physical surroundings, shape and/or topographical conditions of the specific
property involved, a particular hardship to the property owner would result, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of these regulations is carried out;

4. The waiver/suspension will not in any manner vary the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance or
Comprehensive Plan or any other adopted planes) or ordinance(s) of the Village;

5. An alternate design will generally achieve the same result or intent as the standards and regulations prescribed
herein.

Such findings of the Board of Aldermen, together with the specific facts upon which such findings are based, shall
be incorporated into the official minutes of the Board of Aldermen meeting at which a waiver/suspension is
considered. A waiver/suspension from any provision of this Ordinance may be granted only when in harmony
with the general purpose and intent of this Ordinance so that the public health, safety and welfare may be secured



6/16/2016
Item #7

Page 2 of2

and substantial justice done. Pecuniary hardship to the property owner or developer, standing alone, shall not be
deemed to constitute undue hardship."

FISCAL IMPACT: Waiver of the perimeter street improvements and perimeter sidewalk will result in the
Village needing to identify funding for and to pay for the upgrades in the future.

P&Z RECOMMENDATION: The Planning & Zoning Commission considered these waivers at its June 7,
2016, meeting. However, both measures died for lack of a second.

ATTACHMENTS:
• Refer to attachments in Item #6

------------- --------- ---------- - - -- - .



BOARD OF ALDERMEN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

6/16/16
Item #8

Regular Agenda
Page 1 of 1

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator

ITEM DESCRIPTION: PUBLIC HEARING - Presentation, public hearing, and possible action on an Ordinance
of the Board of Alderman of the Village of Salado, Texas, establishing an Ordinance relating to "the Intentional
Feeding and Disposal of Deer;" creating an Offense; providing a Penalty Clause; establishing a fine of no less than
$75 or more than $125 per Feeding Offense; establishing a Fee of $50 per Carcass for Removal from private
property; repealing conflicting ordinances; providing a Severability Clause; and establishing an Effective Date.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: This item originally was submitted by Alderman Dankert in 2015
and established penalties only for the feeding of deer. The ordinance was discussed in workshops on June 18,
July 2, and July 9,2015. During the workshops, Alderman Dankert reported that the urban deer population
poses a hazard to motorists, destroys gardens, and spreads disease. She also reported that because of the current
excessive population, the deer are starving. The ordinance was considered by the BOA at its July 16, 2015,
meeting but failed by a 2-3 vote.

A Town Hall meeting took place on October 22,2015, featuring experts in the area of urban deer management.
At that time, Lewis Raney, M.D., was appointed to serve as chairman of a committee assigned to study the
issue. When the Village established a policy for Boards and Committees, the Deer Committee was absorbed
into the Environmental Committee, with Dr. Raney as chairman.

The Environmental/Deer Committee has made the deer overpopulation its priority. The Committee has met
three times and has discussed potential methods of population control. In the meantime, it has come forth with
Ordinance 2016.15 to address the intentional feeding of wild deer, establish enforcement and penalties, and
establish a fee for the removal of deer from private premises by Village staff.

STAFF / COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Environmental/Deer Committee recommends approval.

FISCAL IMPACT: Administrative costs associated with enforcement, assessing penalties, and carcass disposal.

ATTACHMENTS:
• Proposed Ordinance 2016.15, redline and clean copies
• Exhibit A, redline and clean copies



Ordinance No. =======l:..20~1!.!6!..:.!.0!.!1~5
Village of Salado
County of Bell
State of Texas

ORDINANCE NO. ======~2;.!!0.!.!16~.195

INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE VILLAGE
OF SALADO, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO
"THE INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER;"
CREATING AN OFFENSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE;
ESTABLISHING A FINE OF NO LESS THAN $75 OR MORE THAN $125
PER FEEDING OFFENSE,;.lAL.~DNO LESS THAN $150 OR MORE THt'L.~
$300 PER Mt'L.~AGKMENT OFFENSE; ESTABISHING A FEE OF $50 PER
CARCASS FOR REMOVAL FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY; REPEALING
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Village of Salado (Village) has a significant deer population that has been
increasing; and

WHEREAS, the deer population in the Village poses a hazard to motorists in the Village, causes
a reduction in plant life and other wild animals, and causes damage to landscaping
installed by residents and commercial landowners of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the feeding of deer has been shown to increase the concentration of deer in the area
of feeding, thereby increasing the likelihood of collisions between vehicles and
deer, increasing tick-borne diseases in pets and other wildlife, and increasing
damage to vegetation and landscaping in the area; and

WHEREAS, the feeding of deer has been shown to encourage deer to remain in an urbanized
area and to become reliant on non-native food sources that may not be sustainable
or healthy; and

WHEREAS, the handling of deer carcasses reduces health and safety concerns with residents
within the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen finds that the adoption of an ordinance regulating the
intentional feeding of deer promotes the health, safety and welfare of the citizens
of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen finds that the successful management of the deer population
within the Village must be conducted through safe, sustainable methods;

Ordinance __ • Page 1of 5



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the Village of
Salado, Texas, that:

Section 1.

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found and declared
to be true and correct, and are incorporated by reference herein and expressly made a part hereof,
as if copied verbatim.

Section 2.

Ordinance of the Code of Ordinances relating to "The Intentional Feeding and Disposal
of Deer" is hereby adopted as detailed in the attached Exhibit A.

Section 3.

If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or application thereof, of this
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.

Section 4.

All ordinances that are in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby,
repealed and all other ordinances ofthe Village not in conflict with the provisions ofthis ordinance
shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5.

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this ordinance and the Village Secretary to attest. This
Ordinance shall become effective in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the Village
of Salado.

Ordinance __ • Page 2 of 5



PASSED and APPROVED this the __ day of ,2016, by a __ (ayes) to
__ (nays) to __ (abstentions) vote of the Board of Aldermen of the Village of Salado,
Texas.

Skip Blancett, Mayor

THE VILLAGE OF SALADO, TEXAS:

ATTEST:

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Ordinance __ • Page 3 of 5



Exhibit A

INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER

1. DEFINITION.

"Food" means com, fruit, oats, hay, nuts, wheat, alfalfa, salt blocks, grain, vegetables, and
commercially sold wildlife feed, birdseed or livestock feed, but excludes shrubs, live crops, plants,
flowers, vegetation, gardens, trees, and fruit or nuts that have fallen on the ground from existing
trees on site.

"Manage" means to treat, manage, capture, trap, hunt, or remove deer on private or Village-owned
property.

"Disposal" means to get rid of, at the discretion of Village staff, the carcass or parts of a deer.

2. COMMUNITY EDUCATION.

The Village Administrator shall establish and implement a program to educate the community
about the dangers of overpopulation of deer in urban and suburban areas.

3. FEEDING OF DEER PROHIBITED.

A. fAt---Except as provided in subsection (C), a person commits an offense if the person
intentionally feeds deer or makes food available for consumption by deer on private or
public property within the territorial limits of the village.

fLJBt-A person shall be presumed to have intentionally fed deer, or made food available for
consumption by deer, if the person places food, or causes food to be placed, on the ground
outdoors or on any outdoor platform that stands fewer than five feet above the ground.

Q,_fGt-This section does not apply to an animal control officer, veterinarian, peace officer,
City employee, federal or state wildlife official, or property owner who is participating in
a program authorized by a local, state, or federal government to treat, manage, capture,
trap, hunt, or remove deer and who is acting within the scope of the person's authority.

4. DEER CARCASS REMOVAL PROCESS.

A. A person residing within the Village limits may choose to dispose of a deer carcass by
either (1) legally disposing of the carcass themselves by following all local, State, and
Federal regulations regarding carcass disposal, or (2) contacting the Village staff to assist
with carcass removal.

Ordinance __ • Page 4 of 5



B. A person shall report the death of a deer within Village limits to the Village staff by
telephone or walk-in to the Village offices either (l) within 24 hours of the death of a
deer, or (2) on the next regular business day for Village offices. Payment of pick-up fee
is due at time of report.

C. Village staff will make best effort to remove the deer carcass within 24 hours of the
notification or the next business day. Deer carcass should be dragged to the front of the
home or business, or be in an easily accessible location outside of fenced or otherwise
enclosed areas. Exact location of the carcass shall be provided to Village staff.

~If Village staff cannot access remove the carcass due to limitations of the property,
decomposition state of the carcass, or other reasons not caused by Village staff, property
owner will be responsible for carcass removal and fee will be refunded within 14
business days-;-

.Q.,.E.Resident or property owner must sign a release of liability statement before carcass
removal occurs.

5. AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE.

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution under this chapter if a person places food, in good faith,
for the purpose of feeding domestic livestock or pets located on the property.

6. ENFORCEMENT.

A. fAt-A person may report a violation of this chapter to the Village of Salado office.

IL__fBj-The Salado Police Department or Code Enforcement Clerk may enforce this Chapter.

7. PENALTIES AND FEES.

A. A person who violates this chapter by feeding deer commits an offense. An offense under
this chapter is a Class C misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than $75 or more
than $125 per feeding offense; or a fine not less than $150 or more than $300 per
management offense.

IL__Feesshall be assessed for the removal of carcasses on private property. The fee for carcass
removal shall be $50 per animal. Feemust be paid in full at Village office, or by telephone,
before carcass will be removed. Failure to pay fee in a timely manner will prevent Village
staff from removing the carcass.

Ordinance • Page 5 of 5



Ordinance No. 2016.015
Village of Salado
County of Bell
State of Texas

ORDINANCE NO. 2016.15

INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMAN OF THE VILLAGE
OF SALADO, TEXAS, ESTABLISHING AN ORDINANCE RELATING TO
"THE INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER;"
CREATING AN OFFENSE; PROVIDING A PENALTY CLAUSE;
EST ABLISHING A FINE OF NO LESS THAN $75 OR MORE THAN $125
PER FEEDING OFFENSE; ESTABISHING A FEE OF $50 PER CARCASS
FOR REMOVAL FROM PRIVATE PROPERTY; REPEALING
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Village of Salado (Village) has a significant deer population that has been
increasing; and

WHEREAS, the deer population in the Village poses a hazard to motorists in the Village, causes
a reduction in plant life and other wild animals, and causes damage to landscaping
installed by residents and commercial landowners of the Village; and

WHEREAS, the feeding of deer has been shown to increase the concentration of deer in the area
of feeding, thereby increasing the likelihood of collisions between vehicles and
deer, increasing tick-borne diseases in pets and other wildlife, and increasing
damage to vegetation and landscaping in the area; and

WHEREAS, the feeding of deer has been shown to encourage deer to remain in an urbanized
area and to become reliant on non-native food sources that may not be sustainable
or healthy; and

WHEREAS, the handling of deer carcasses reduces health and safety concerns with residents
within the Village; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen finds that the adoption of an ordinance regulating the
intentional feeding of deer promotes the health, safety and welfare of the citizens
of the Village; and

Ordinance 2016.15 • Page 1of 5



WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen finds that the successful management of the deer population
within the Village must be conducted through safe, sustainable methods;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Aldermen of the Village of
Salado, Texas, that:

Section 1.

The facts and recitations contained in the preamble of this ordinance are hereby found and declared
to be true and correct, and are incorporated by reference herein and expressly made a part hereof,
as if copied verbatim.

Section 2.

Ordinance 2016.15 of the Code of Ordinances relating to "The Intentional Feeding and Disposal
of Deer" is hereby adopted as detailed in the attached Exhibit A.

Section 3.

If any provision of this ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be
held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions, or application thereof, of this
ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.

Section 4.

All ordinances that are in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance be, and the same are hereby,
repealed and all other ordinances of the Village not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance
shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 5.

The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign this ordinance and the Village Secretary to attest. This
Ordinance shall become effective upon passage and appropriate publishing in the newspaper.

Ordinance 2016.15 • Page 2 of 5



PASSED and APPROVED this the 16th day of June, 2016~by a __ (ayes) to __ (nays)
to (abstentions) vote of the Board of Aldermen of the Village of Salado, Texas.

THE VILLAGE OF SALADO, TEXAS:

Skip Blancett, Mayor
ATTEST:

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Ordinance 2016.15 • Page 3 of 5



Exhibit A

INTENTIONAL FEEDING AND DISPOSAL OF DEER

1. DEFINITION.

"Food" means com, fruit, oats, hay, nuts, wheat, alfalfa, salt blocks, grain, vegetables, and
commercially sold wildlife feed, birdseed or livestock feed, but excludes shrubs, live crops, plants,
flowers, vegetation, gardens, trees, and fruit or nuts that have fallen on the ground from existing
trees on site.

"Manage" means to treat, manage, capture, trap, hunt, or remove deer on private or Village-owned
property.

"Disposal" means to get rid of, at the discretion of Village staff, the carcass or parts of a deer.

2. COMMUNITY EDUCATION.

The Village Administrator shall establish and implement a program to educate the community
about the dangers of overpopulation of deer in urban and suburban areas.

3. FEEDING OF DEER PROHIBITED.

A. Except as provided in subsection (C), a person commits an offense if the person
intentionally feeds deer or makes food available for consumption by deer on private or
public property within the territorial limits of the village.

B. A person shall be presumed to have intentionally fed deer, or made food available for
consumption by deer, if the person places food, or causes food to be placed, on the ground
outdoors or on any outdoor platform that stands fewer than five feet above the ground.

C. This section does not apply to an animal control officer, veterinarian, peace officer, City
employee, federal or state wildlife official, or property owner who is participating in a
program authorized by a local, state, or federal government to treat, manage, capture, trap,
hunt, or remove deer and who is acting within the scope of the person's authority.

4. DEER CARCASS REMOVAL PROCESS.

A. A person residing within the Village limits may choose to dispose of a deer carcass by
either (1) legally disposing of the carcass themselves by following all local, State, and
Federal regulations regarding carcass disposal, or (2) contacting the Village staff to assist
with carcass removal.

B. A person shall report the death of a deer within Village limits to the Village staff by
telephone or walk-in to the Village offices either (1) within 24 hours of the death of a

Ordinance 2016.15 • Page 4 of 5



deer, or (2) on the next regular business day for Village offices. Payment of pick-up fee
is due at time of report.

C. Village staff will make best effort to remove the deer carcass within 24 hours of the
notification or the next business day. Deer carcass should be dragged to the front of the
home or business, or be in an easily accessible location outside of fenced or otherwise
enclosed areas. Exact location of the carcass shall be provided to Village staff.

D. If Village staff cannot remove the carcass due to limitations of the property,
decomposition state of the carcass, or other reasons, property owner will be responsible
for carcass removal and fee will be refunded within 14 business days.

E. Resident or property owner must sign a release of liability statement before carcass
removal occurs.

s. AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSE.

It is an affirmative defense to prosecution under this chapter if a person places food, in good faith,
for the purpose of feeding domestic livestock or pets located on the property.

6. ENFORCEMENT.

A. A person may report a violation of this chapter to the Village of Salado office.

B. The Salado Police Department or Code Enforcement Clerk may enforce this Chapter.

7. PENALTIES AND FEES.

A. A person who violates this chapter by feeding deer commits an offense. An offense under
this chapter is a Class C misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than $75 or more
than $125 per feeding offense.

B. Fees shall be assessed for the removal of carcasses on private property. The fee for
carcass removal shall be $50 per animal. Fee must be paid in full at Village office, or by
telephone, before carcass will be removed. Failure to pay fee in a timely manner will
prevent Village staff from removing the carcass.

Ordinance 2016.15 • Page 5 of 5


